
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
July 25, 2019 

 

 

 
 

 

 
                                                                  

 
 



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees 

 

 

ITEM# / ACTION  Thursday, July 25, 2019 – PAM NISSLER CONFERENCE ROOM AT LIBRARY 

ADMINISTRATION 

1.  Call to order & attendance (4.5.8) 

 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Action  Approve Agenda 

Call for motion and second 

 

4.  Public Comment 

 

5. CONSENT 

AGENDA 

Action  

 

Approval of Consent Agenda 

Call for motion and second 

a) June 13, 2019 Study Session Minutes 

b) June 20, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

 

6.  Information   Foundation Report – Jo Schantz 

 

7. Operational 

Updates 

      Action as Needed 

 Executive Director Update 

 

 Finance and Budget  

 Financial Reports 

 Edgewater Closeout 

 

 Facilities & Construction Projects 

 Intergovernmental License Agreement Authorization (City of Arvada) 

Call for motion and second 

 Lease Agreement Authorization (Facilities & Foundation) 

Call for motion and second 

 Library Service Center (LSC) Garage Authorization 

Call for motion and second 

 Belmar Library Phase II ‐ Authorization 

Call for motion and second 

 

 Information Technology 

 Belmar Library Sorter Contract Authorization 

Call for motion and second 

 

 Public Services 

 Baker & Taylor Value Added Services Contract Renewal  

Call for motion and second 

 Ebsco Subscription Services Contract Renewal  

Call for motion and second 



BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees 

 

 

8.  Action as Needed  Items Removed From Consent Agenda (4.3.4) 

The Board may address and/or vote on any items that were removed from the 

Consent Agenda      

 

9.  Emerging Issues 

Action as Needed 

 

 

10.    Action as Needed  Ends 

 

11.  Action as Needed  Governing Policies 

 No items 

 

12.  Suggest Agenda 

Items 

BOARD SCHEDULE – NEXT MEETINGS 

 August 8 – Study Session – 5:30 pm Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 August 15 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Standley Lake Library Meeting Room 

 September 12 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Administration 

Conference Room 

 September 19 – Joint Library & Foundation Board Meeting – 4:45 ‐5:30 pm –

Regular Library Board Meeting 5:45pm‐ Belmar Library Meeting Room 

 October 8 – Study Session – 5:30 pm ‐ Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 October 15 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Lakewood Library Meeting Room 

 

13.  Discussion  Board Questions or Comments Related to Items on the Meeting Agenda 

 

14.  Discussion  Evaluate Board Meeting (4.1.9) 

 

15.  Information 

 

   

Announcements/General Information Sharing 

 Report of the Chair – Correspondence, Other 

 Other Announcements 

 

 

16. Adjournment 

 

 

 



CONSENT AGENDA  



 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Library Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Charles Naumer, Chair and Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  July 16, 2019 
 
RE:  Consent Agenda – July 25, 2019 
 
 

a) June 13, 2019 Study Session Minutes 
o Library Board of Trustees approve the minutes of the June 13, 2019 Study Session as 

presented. 
b) June 20, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

o Library Board of Trustees approve the minutes of the June 20, 2019 Board Meeting as 
presented. 

 



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees  

Study Session 

June 13, 2019 – 5:30 pm 

Administration Conference Room 

 

TOPICS:  

 Proposal for JCPL to go Fine Free 

 Financial Review 

 2020 Operating & 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan  

o 5 & 10 Year Financial Plan 

 Midwest Tape Renewal Contract 

 

Call to Order 

The Study Session was called to order at 5:33 p.m. by Charles Naumer, Chair. 

 

Other Trustees present: Kim Johnson (Vice‐Chair), Pam Anderson (Secretary), Deborah 

Deal, Brian DeLaet and Jeanne Lomba. 

 

Trustees not present: John Bodnar 

 

Staff present: Donna Walker, Executive Director; Julianne Rist, Director of Libraries; 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects; Bernadette Berger, 

Director of Information Technology; Barbara Long, Assistant Director of Finance and 

Budget; Rebecca Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement; Sandie Coutts, 

Director of People and Culture; Padma Polepeddi, Assistant Director of Library 

Programs and Services; Jessica Paulsen, Public Services Manager; Debi Mikash, 

Collection Services Manager; and Amber Fisher, Executive Assistant, Office of the 

Executive Director. 

 

Proposal for JCPL to go Fine Free 

Donna Walker, Executive Director, advised the Board that a detailed memo is included 

in their information packets about expanding fine free beyond children’s materials and 

that Julianne Rist, Director of Libraries, has a presentation to go over some of the 

highlights of the memo and answer any questions the Board may have about the 

recommendation. 

 

Julianne addressed the Board and presented the Library’s recommendation to eliminate 

overdue fines on library materials.  Nationwide, many libraries have, or are in the 

process of, eliminating overdue fines, including 20 libraries and library systems in 

Colorado. JCPL would be late adopters.  Fines are a barrier to library use.  Removing 

fines reduces barriers to resources and support, increases library use and would 

support JCPL’s stated strategic initiatives.  JCPL is recommending the removal of 



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

overdue fines on materials returned after the due date. However, Patrons will still be 

charged for lost and damaged material 
 

Many libraries report no significant change to hold times after implementing fine free. 

Salt Lake City did report longer hold times, but they also had 10% more unique 

borrowers in the same period, to which much of the hold time increase was attributed. 

When High Plains Library District removed fines in 2015, children’s circulation rose 

16% in 18 months and 95% of all materials were returned within one week of the due 

date. Salt Lake City Public Library removed fines in 2017. Their circulation rose 16% 

after one year and 26,000 new cardholders were added.   
 
Loss of fines revenue of $257,000, or 0.6% of total budgeted revenue, is included in the 

proposed 2020 budget, and reflected in the five and 10‐year financial plans.  There are 

11,000 patrons (7%) who have checked out material in the last year and their accounts 

are blocked because they owe more than $10.00 in overdue fines or other charges.  

There are 113,701 patrons who have a fine amount on their record as of May 30, 2019. 
 

Staff will have increased time to provide other patron services that would have 

otherwise been spent on fines.  Going fine free creates better service for all our patrons 

but especially to those patrons who utilize multiple area library systems.  Many of our 

neighboring libraries are already fines free.  When JCPL went fine free on children’s 

materials, checkouts of materials intended for use by children increased 5% year over 

year from 2017 to 2018.  We attribute some of that increase to removing overdue fines 

on those materials. 
 

JCPL staff recommend eliminating overdue fines on library materials in order to 

increase the access to and use of our libraries and to support our strategic initiative to 

eliminate barriers to physical materials, as well as live up to our core values of 

innovation, accountability, and excellence. The Board was provided with quotes from 

patrons in appreciation of the decision to removal fines on children’s materials and 

asking why JCPL has not expanded fine free to other material. 

 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 Items are considered lost and marked on the patron’s account if the item is not 

returned three weeks after the due date. 

 The Library is aware that “we can’t go back” and reinstitute fines in the future if 

JCPL falls on hard times. 

 The Library will monitor activity much like it did with the removal of fines on 

children’s materials and does not anticipate aberrant patron behavior compared 

to the patron behavior of other library systems who went fine free. 

 The rollout of going fine free would be much like the rollout JCPL did for fine 

free children’s materials.   

 The recommendation is for JCPL to go fine free in January 2020. 



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 There are approximately 113,000 blocked patron accounts, which represents 

approximately one third of the patron base. 

 Revenue from fines does not appear on the books until they are received.  

 If JCPL goes fine free, all fines would be written off as of January 1, 2020. Fees for 

lost or damaged items would remain in patron accounts. 

 JCPL does not anticipate an impact on holds. Research data indicates that 95% of 

items are returned within one week of the due date, which is also the current 

return rate with fines. 

 Research did not show any “hybrid” approaches.  The only way libraries have 

implemented fine free programs is based on category (like children’s materials) 

not on high or low demand materials. 

 All public services staff handle fines as part of their work. There are no staff 

specifically dedicated to fines management.  The only anticipated impact on staff 

is that they will have more time to provide other services to patrons (reader’s 

advisory, research, etc.). JCPL is not expecting any reallocation of staff. 

 JCPL has a system in place to notify patrons when materials are coming due and 

when they are overdue.  There are many messaging models available to use. (For 

example, one local library system has a message “be a hero – someone else is 

waiting for the item you have”). 

The Executive Director noted that a few years ago, revenue from fines was a much 

bigger number.  Library systems were seeing fines revenue plateau and start to go 

down. In addition, e‐materials have affected fines revenue. The balance between how 

much time and cost is required to manage fines and how much revenue is generated 

has made fine free a good choice for libraries across the country. 

 

Financial Review 

There were no questions regarding the financials that were presented at the May Board 

meeting. 

 

2020 Operating & 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan  

Barbara Long, Assistant Director of Finance and Budget, addressed the Board and 

presented the 2020 proposed budget.  Proposed 2020 budget assumptions include; 

property tax revenue based on the most current estimates of assessed value and 4.5 

mills; increase in salary cost estimated at 3%; health insurance cost increase is estimated 

at 10%.  Additionally, the minimum wage increase to $12/hour affected salaries and the 

cost of services. 
 

Budgeted revenue for 2020 incorporates the projected impact of eliminating library fines 

for all patrons. In 2018, JCPL eliminated fines on children’s materials and the 2020 budget 

expands this initiative to all household members. The projected decrease in revenue is 

around $257,000. 



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 

Highlights of the proposed budget are the continued phased implementation of the 

staffing plan, improving services in underserved areas (South County and Alternative 

Services), and addressing the library’s strategic priorities including the implementation 

of fine free. The Library is taking a measured approach to staffing. 

 

The 5 and 10 year financial model is based on 4.5 mills and a 5% valuation increase. 

Capital investments reflect the priorities identified by the Board of Trustees and a 

phased implementation of the staffing plan and facility master plan. 

 

5 & 10 Year 
Plan 

Summary 
Actual        
2018 

Projected 
Actuals 2019

Proposed 
Budget 2020

Projected 
Budget 2021

Projected 
Budget 2022 

Projected 
Budget 2023

 Revenue  
 

38,397,172       43,495,954  47,240,459       47,356,793 
 

49,689,788  49,705,108 

Operating 
Expense  32,096,436  35,036,912 38,276,684 40,419,670 43,641,007  43,566,824

Debt Service 
 

1,486,667         1,448,432  1,410,421             621,818 
 

621,944  621,744

Capital 
Investment 

 
3,448,761         9,508,664  10,122,000         8,889,000         4,442,000  2,136,000

Total Uses of 
Funds  37,031,864  45,994,008 49,809,105 49,930,488 48,704,951  46,324,568

Change to 
Fund Balance 

 
1,365,308  (2,498,054) (2,568,646)      (2,573,695)

 
984,837         3,380,540 

 

5 & 10 Year 
Plan Summary 

Actual       
2018 

Projected 
Actuals 2019 

Proposed 
Budget 2020

Projected 
Budget 2021

Projected 
Budget 2022 

Projected 
Budget 2023

Beginning 
Fund Balance 

     
18,164,235         19,529,543 

       
17,031,489       14,462,842 

         
11,889,147       12,873,984 

Total Sources 
     
38,397,172         43,495,954 

       
47,240,459       47,356,793 

         
49,689,788       49,705,108 

Total Uses 
     
37,031,864         45,994,008 

       
49,809,105       49,930,488 

         
48,704,951       46,324,568 

Ending Fund 
Balance 

     
19,529,543         17,031,489 

       
14,462,842       11,889,147 

         
12,873,984       16,254,524 

Minimum 
Fund Balance 

        
9,599,293         10,873,989 

       
11,810,115       11,839,198 

         
12,422,447       12,426,277 

Maximum 
Fund Balance 

     
19,198,586         21,747,977 

       
23,620,230       23,678,397 

         
24,844,894       24,852,554 

Fund Balance 
Over Min 

 
9,930,250         6,157,500  2,652,727               49,949 

 
451,537         3,828,247 

 

The Library’s capital projects in the 2020 budget and 5 year Capital Improvement Plan 

(CIP) reflect the community’s priority of improving services in underserved areas with 

development of the South County Library and funding for Alternative Services. Funding 



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

for Annual Repair and Maintenance  (ARM) allows  the Library  to  take care of existing 

buildings and update the IT infrastructure that patrons and staff rely on.  

 

The proposed budget for 2020 also includes continued investment in books and materials, 

library  programing  and  other  services  with  the  goal  of  balancing  growth  and 

enhancements to library services with long‐term financial sustainability. 

 

Investment in Outreach Services 

 
 

2020 Capital Investments 

Annual Replacement Plan & On-Going Projects 

ARM-01 Capital Maintenance  $      250,000  
ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment           36,000  
ARM-03 Computer 5-year Replacement Plan          180,000  
ARM-04 Book Sorter Replacement          300,000  
ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement           370,000  
Alternative Services          450,000  

Total ARM  $   1,586,000  

Capital Projects 

19-03 South County Library       4,000,000  
20-01 Arvada HVAC Control Upgrade          140,000  
20-02 Golden Library       4,396,000  

Total Capital Projects  $   8,536,000  

Total Capital Improvement Plan  $ 10,122,000  

 

Libraries & 
Services
90%

Outreach
Services
10%



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

The Library will ask the Board to authorize the Executive Director to submit the 2020 

budget to the Board of County Commissioners at the June 20, 2019 Library Board 

meeting and have the Chair sign the budget cover letter. 
 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 The estimated 10% health insurance cost increase is the employer cost 

 The County is required to do a cost allocation study – that has to be good enough 

for the federal and state governments and based on actual transactions. The 

Library is getting the same allocation as other County departments, there is not 

that room for manipulation as there was in the past. 

 Investment in Outreach Services is about the same amount as operating one of 

the larger libraries like Belmar or Columbine. 

 One adjustment was made for the South County project – the contingency was 

increased from 5% to 10% as requested by the Board. 

 The 2020 proposed budget does not reflect carry over capital projects. At this 

time of year, the Library does not know if there will be carry over.   

 There was some carry over from 2018 to 2019 that was requested by the Library 

and approved by the Board earlier this year. 

 The South County project is budgeted over two years to reflect a more realistic 

approach to planning this type of project. 

 The Library will provide more detail on the 2020 FTE positions being added; 

information on the number of FTE that were cut and information on how the 

fund balance was utilized during the recession (2009, 2010 and 2011).  

The Chair noted that he had some suggestion on the budget cover letter that he will 

send to the Executive Director. 

 

Midwest Tape Renewal Contract 

Julianne Rist introduced the topic and provided information on the renewal for the 

MidWest Tape contract.  In 2016, the library entered into an RFP process to ensure we 

were receiving the best value for materials and processing, as well as streamlining our 

workflow by using a primary vendor for audiovisual material. In July of 2016, the Board 

of Trustees authorized Jefferson County Public Library to make MidWest Tape our 

primary vendor for media, DVDs, CDs and Audiobooks. The approved contract allows 

us to renew it annually for four additional years.  The first and second renewal of this 

contract was in 2017 and 2018.  MidWest Tape continues to provide us with a quality 

product and the services outlined in our original RFP.  There is a not to exceed amount 

of $3,000,000 which is the same amount approved in 2018.  At the Board meeting on 

June 20, the Library will request that the Board of Trustees approve the third renewal of 

this contract, and authorize the Executive Director to sign the renewal. In response to a 

question, the Board was advised that this contract is for physical materials, not e‐

materials. 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 

 

Trustee Deal asked what was going on with the Foundation MOU.  Trustee Deal was 

advised that this topic was not on the agenda for this meeting and that it may be 

addressed under emerging issues at the Board meeting next week.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The Study Session was adjourned at 6:28 p.m.  
 

 

 

                 

Pam Anderson, Secretary 
 

 



 

1 of 6 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

June 20, 2019 

 

CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR MEETING 

The regular meeting of the Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees was held in 

the Edgewater Library, City Council Chamber room, on June 20, 2019.  Library Board of 

Trustees Chair, Charles Naumer, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  Other Trustees 

present: Kim Johnson (Vice‐Chair), Pam Anderson (Secretary), Deborah Deal, Brian 

DeLaet and Jeanne Lomba. 

 

Trustees not present: John Bodnar 

 

Staff present:  Donna Walker, Executive Director; Julianne Rist, Director of Libraries; 

Rebecca Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement; Bernadette Berger, Director of 

Information Technology; Barbara Long, Assistant Director of Finance and Budget; Padma 

Polepeddi, Assistant Director of Library Experience; Sandie Coutts, Director of Employee 

Relations and Development; and Amber Fisher, Executive Assistant, Office of the 

Executive Director.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

MOTION:  Kim Johnson moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the 

agenda as presented. Seconded by Brian DeLaet the motion passed by unanimous 

vote of all Trustees present.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

The Chair asked the Trustees if any of the items should be removed from the consent 

agenda.  There were no requests for items to be removed. 

 

MOTION:  Jeanne Lomba moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the 

items on the consent agenda.  Seconded by Brian DeLaet the consent agenda was 

approved by unanimous vote of all Trustees present. 

 

FOUNDATION REPORT 

Jo Schantz, Foundation Executive Director, provided an update to the Board on the 

activities of the Foundation. The Spring Whale used book sale raised $3,000 more than 



 

2 of 6 

2018 or $76,000, Jo expressed appreciation to Trustee Deal who stepped up and helped as a 

volunteer.  Grant responses are slow; however, over $75,000 in grant proposals have been 

submitted. The Kinder Morgan Foundation did respond with $5,000 for summer reading. 

The Library Board expressed their appreciation for the hard work involved in the Whale 

Sale and extended their congratulations for the success. 

 

EXECUTIVE TEAM OPERATIONAL UPDATES 

Executive Director Update 

Donna Walker, Executive Director, provided an update to the Board. The Urban Libraries 

Council 2019 Forum is coming up in October and it is a great conference for Trustees.  The 

October Board meeting could be rescheduled to accommodate Trustee attendance at this 

conference.  The Colorado Association of Libraries conference is in September and offers 

specific trainings and sessions for Trustees. Charles Naumer is on a panel.  More 

information on both of the conferences is included in the Executive Director’s Board 

report.  The Trustees were asked to contact Amber Fisher if they would like to attend any 

of the conferences. The Executive Director noted that Sandie Coutts, Director of People 

and Culture recently earned her Senior Certified Professional credential from the 

International Public Management Association for Human Resources. Monica Rezac, 

former manager of statistics who has been working with JCPL on several projects, 

successfully defended her dissertation and now has a Doctorate in Research Methods and 

Statistics.  

 

The Executive Director advised the Trustees that Barbara Long, Assistant Director of 

Finance and Budget, is presenting information in response to questions the Trustees asked 

at the May Study Session regarding Library positions and the historical use of fund 

balance. 

 

Barbara Long addressed the Board and presented information on Library positions and 

the historical use of fund balance. During the discussion of the proposed 2020 budget at 

the Study Session, Trustees had some questions about staffing additions in the proposed 

2020 budget including where are new positions are being added and how they fit into the 

historical context of JCPL staffing, in particular the layoffs in response to budget pressures. 

There was also a question about the historical use of fund balance for operations during 

2009 – 2011.  Nineteen of the twenty‐four positions will be added in Public Services and 

the five other positions are in infrastructure.  Of the nineteen public service positions, 10.5 

are replacing temporary positions.    
 

Information was presented showing how JCPL’s staffing has changed over time since the 

economic downturn of 2009. The measure of FTE shown included hours worked by 

temporary staff which is a common measure used in libraries and defined by the Public 

Library Data Service (PLDS) survey.  The number of authorized positions in the budget 



 

3 of 6 

document represents only standard (benefit eligible) employees. In 2016 the Library 

restored and expanded hours and in 2018 FTE were added for the new Edgewater Library.  

 

To put this in the context of cost, Salaries & Benefits have increased by half as much as 

revenue. In 2009 the Library’s Salaries and Benefits as a percentage of operating cost was 

62%, in 2020 it will be 56%. The 2020 FTE is still lower than in 2009. 
 

In answer to the question regarding the use of fund balance, the Trustees were provided 

with information on budgeted use of fund balance for operations compared with the 

actual use of fund balance for operations. Throughout the time period (2010 – 2013), JCPL 

never used as much of the fund balance as was budgeted, but in 2010 significantly less was 

spent on capital than budgeted ($3M budget vs, $271K) actual and the total use of fund 

balance was just over $1M. 

 

 Actual 2010: $1,054,308 total use of fund balance; $782,883 for operating 

 Actual 2011: $599,028 total use of fund balance; $94,295 for operating 

 Actual 2012: $213,294 total use of fund balance all for capital 

 Actual 2013: no use of fund balance – fund balance increased by $642K 

 

Even in difficult times (2009‐2015) the fund balance never dipped below $10 million.  

 

The Trustees were advised that Amber Fisher will send the presentation document to the 

Trustees and post the information in the June Board report on the website 

 

Finance and Budget Department 

Financial Reports 

Barbara  Long  presented  information  on  the May  2020  financial  reports.  Revenues  are 

coming in.  Property tax revenue represents seventy‐one percent of the budgeted revenue 

for 2019.  Library Foundation support is exceeding the budget.  The first interest only debt 

service payment was made.   The Library will have more detailed projections  in vacancy 

savings  at  the  end  of  June.  In May,  the  Library  Board  approved  a  budget  transfer  of 

$250,000  to  fund  library  alternative  services  (book  locker  and  vending machine).  This 

project is not reflected in the May financial tables but will be included in the June tables.  

 

In response to a question, the Board was advised that the variance column in the financial 

tables is between the projected amount and the budgeted amount. Projections on the 

actual amount will begin closer to the end of the year when there is more information.  

 

 

 

 



 

4 of 6 

2020 Budget 

The Chair asked the Trustees if there were any questions or comments about the proposed 

2020 budget that was presented at the May Study Session.  There were no questions or 

comments from the Board. 

 

2020 5‐Year Capital Plan 

MOTION:  Kim Johnson moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to submit the 2020 5‐Year Capital Plan request to the Board of 

County Commissioners (4.2.5 C). Seconded by Deborah Deal the motion passed by 

unanimous vote of all Trustees present. 

 

2020 Proposed Budget Plan 

MOTION:  Pam Anderson moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to submit the 2020 Proposed Budget Plan to the Board of County 

Commissioners (4.2.5 C). Seconded by Kim Johnson the motion passed by 

unanimous vote of all Trustees present. 

 

The Trustees expressed appreciation for all the hard work that the staff put into 

developing the budget. 

 

Public Services 

Belmar Project Update 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects, addressed the Board and 

introduced the topic. The Design and Development drawing (D&D) is about 98% 

complete. HDR is holding interviews to further refine and will be moving on to 

construction documents, – then to permitting, then closing and construction.  The project 

team has been holding bi‐weekly meetings to continue the design process and Fransen 

Pittman is working on the costs of construction. It does look like they are within our 

budget.  Alternative Services are still being explored and JCPL is working on the sorter 

RFP.  The team will be reviewing the initial GMP and expects to come to the Board in July 

with the price for construction and to ask for authorization to move into Phase II of the 

project. 

 

Information Technology 

Belmar Sorter Information 

Bernadette Berger, Director of Information Technology, addressed the Board and provided 

information on the Belmar sorter. The Library anticipates bringing the sorter contract to 

the next Board meeting for authorization.  JCPL posted a Request for Proposal (RFP) for an 

automated materials handling (AMH) system or book sorter.   The RFP includes the AMH 

for Belmar as well as an option for two additional sorters, the location of which will be 



 

5 of 6 

determined later.  The Library felt that it was time to reevaluate and update the process 

based on the findings of a multi‐disciplinary committee.   
 

In response to questions, the Board was advised that: 

 The current vendor contract does not have the support and training clauses the 

Library would like to see. 

 The Executive Director charged Bernadette with finding the best product moving 

forward.  The current vendor was new to the environment and did not have a fully 

developed service agreement.  They are still supporting Columbine and Edgewater. 

 

Facilities and Construction Projects 

Lease Agreement 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects, introduced the topic and 

provided information on the lease agreement for Facilities and the Foundation. In July, the 

Library will ask the Board to approve a continued lease of the facilities space.  In January, 

the building was sold and the Library negotiated a lease agreement with the new owners. 

The lease is for 13,413 sq. ft. of space that houses the Facilities department, Foundation and 

warehouse space.  Research on industrial rates in the area found that the lease rate is in the 

median of price range for similar sites.  The five‐year term of the lease, works well for 

JCPL and fit in with our Facility Master Plan. 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

No items were removed from the consent agenda. 

 

EMERGING ISSUES 

The Chair advised the Board that the Library and Foundation working group worked on 

the details of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  The MOU went into legal 

review at the beginning of June.  The Chair met with the Foundation Board Chair and 

Vice‐Chair last Monday, went through the MOU, and expect that we are close to final 

agreement.  The working group will reconvene in August and the plan is to bring the 

MOU to the Library Board in August.  There will be a joint Board meeting with the 

Foundation in September. 

 

BOARD SCHEDULE – NEXT MEETINGS 

The Board discussed the July meeting schedule and determined that a quorum would not 

be present for the July 18, Board meeting.  The July 11, Study Session will be cancelled and 

the July 18 Board meeting will be rescheduled to July 25.  Official notifications will be sent 

to the Trustees and posted on the website. 

 

 July 11 – Study Session – CANCELLED 

 July 25 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Location to be determined 



 

6 of 6 

 August 8 – Study Session – 5:30 pm Pam Nissler Administration Conference Room 

 August 15 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Standley Lake Library Meeting Room 

 September 12 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 September 19 – Joint Library & Foundation Board Meeting – 4:45 ‐5:30 pm –Regular 

Library Board Meeting 5:45pm‐ Belmar Library Meeting Room 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/GENERAL INFORMATION SHARING 

The Chair acknowledged Rebecca Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement and 

noted her incredible impact on JCPL.  The Board and Library staff are very grateful to have 

been able to work with Rebecca and thanked her for her wisdom and knowledge and for 

helping navigate the Library through some challenging times. Rebecca Winning will be 

deeply missed. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

The Board meeting was adjourned at 6:18pm. 

 

 

                 

         

        Pam Anderson, Secretary 

   



FOUNDATION REPORT 

 

 

 



JULY 2019 – FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  1 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

JULY 2019 (June 19 – July 18)  

By Jo Schantz, MNM, CFRE 
1.  Grants and Sponsorships Update 

Pending: 

 The Collier Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 Early Childhood Literacy 

 Theda & Tamblin Clark Smith Family Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 general operating support 

 Virginia Hill Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 general operating support 

 Hewit Family Foundation ‐‐ $20,000 general operating support 

 Sunflower Bank ‐‐ $1,500 EPIC STEM challenge 

 McInnes Charitable Trust ‐‐ $10,000 for Summer Reading 

 City of Wheat Ridge ‐‐ $2,900 for a 3‐tiered children’s activity center 

 Buell Foundation ‐‐ $10,000 for 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten and $8,000 for Raise A Reader 

 Rose Community Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for 1,000 Books Before Kindergarten 

 Key Bank Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for general operating support 

 BOK Financial Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for Babies First Books 

 Vicksman Charitable Trust ‐‐ $5,000 ($2,500 for 1,000 Books and $2,500 for Babies First Books) 
Approved: 

 Kinder Morgan Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 sponsorship for Summer Reading 

 Coors On Tap Credit Union ‐‐ $1,000 sponsorship for Raise A Reader 
Denied: 

 Solera Bank – $2,500 for Raise a Reader 

 Madigan Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 

 Nord Family Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 

 Mabel Y. Hughes Charitable Trust ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 

 Michael & Susan Dell Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for Babies First Books 

 Anadarko Foundation ‐‐ $25,000 general operating support 

 Anschutz Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 Early Childhood Literacy 

 Wells Fargo Bank ‐‐ $5,000 for Babies First Books 
 
2.  Special Events and Activities 

Annual Volunteer Appreciation Luncheon  

and Awards Celebration 

Friday, July 26, 11:30 a.m. to 1 p.m. 

Goosetown Event Center, 514 9th St, Golden 

AS OF JULY 11, OUR FOUNDATION HAS CONTRIBUTED $93,839 TO JCPL IN SUPPORT 
OF SUMMER READING, TEEN PROGRAMMING, THE OUTDOOR ADVENTURE SPACE 

AT STANDLEY LAKE LIBRARY AND EARLY CHILDHOOD LITERACY! 



JULY 2019 – FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  2 

 

 
3.  News, Meetings and Networking 
 

As a result of my PowerPoint presentation on JCLF to the Board of Directors for the 
Jefferson County Economic Development Corporation in June, I was approached by 
two individuals who want to become involved in JCLF and in supporting Jefferson 
County Public Library. These include Kristin Grace, real estate development 
coordinator from The Opus Group, and Ashley Verville, the director of 

Communications and Outreach for Congressman Ed Perlmutter. Kristin is looking for volunteer opportunities for 
her and her coworkers, plus The Opus Group has a Foundation, and we are investigating ways JCLF can apply for 
funding. Ashley is interested in Board membership, and she is meeting with me and Board Member Ron Marquez 
on July 24 at the Foundation for a site visit and to learn more about serving on our Board. 
 

I was pleased to be invited to provide a special presentation on Thursday, June 
27 to Sgt. John Coe from the Colorado Dept. of Corrections at Camp George 
West. The award was to honor Sgt. Coe for his leadership and assistance in 
helping our Foundation produce the semi‐annual Whale of a Used Book Sales at 
the Jeffco Fairgrounds. He has been our main contact for many years, and we 
rely on him and the inmates from Camp George West to assist us with set‐up 
for these huge sales each spring and fall. After presenting the award, I was 
invited to tour the facility with Sgt. Coe and DOC administrator Rosa Frayre. 
 

Later that same day, JCPL staff liaison Rebecca Winning and I met at the Foundation with Lisa Rucker, senior 
program officer from the Gates Family Foundation. I provided a tour of 
our offices and warehouse, and the three of us discussed the upcoming 
Belmar Library remodel and possible funding for a new Outdoor 
Adventure Space. On Wednesday, June 26, I attended a fundraising 
luncheon for the new Porchlight Family Justice Center in Lakewood.  
 
JCPL Executive Director Donna Walker and I had a phone conference on July 5 to discuss the Foundation’s 2019 
grants calendar. Board member and Trustee Deborah Deal and I met with representatives from the Jeffco 
Fairgrounds on July 10 to wrap up activities from the spring Whale of 
a Used Book Sale and make recommendations for upcoming sales. 

Deb and I 
also met 
with Jacki Paone, ED of CSU Extension in Jefferson 
County, to discuss a potential collaboration with the 
Extension’s horticulture department, Master Gardeners 
and 4‐H to potentially partner up on family‐oriented 
activities at the fall Whale of a Used Book Sale in 
October.  
 
As part of my Board member activities for the Jefferson 
County Community Services Advisory Board, I attended 
the 2019 Colorado Community Action Conference held 
July 15‐17 in Colorado Springs.  
 

Earlier this month, I reached out to JCLF’s major donor Kellie Ward from Arvada, and she visited the Foundation 
for a tour on July 5. The Wards are also volunteers for JCPL’s Library2You program. I recently had lunch with 
Arvada City Councilman Mark McGoff to learn more about the city’s upcoming grant funding opportunities. 



Operational Updates 

 

Executive Director Update 

 

 



 

1 
 

July 2019 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

Strategy and Planning: 

 2020 Strategic Planning: consultation with Colorado State Library, target-setting 
 Participated in conversations about County budget challenges and plans for the future 
 Recruiting for new director of Strategy and Engagement  

Safety, Security and Social Work 

Based on the well-researched recommendation of our Safety, Security and Social Work staff, 
the Library has made the decision to expand our life-saving toolkit of CPR, Evac Chair, and 
AED’s to include Naloxone (Narcan). The County Attorney reviewed our process and has no 
issues. A partnership with Jeffco Public Health will help us provide training to interested staff. 

Community Engagement 

Sandie Coutts, Director of People and Culture, and Jill Krantz, Employee Relations Manager, 
will be attending the EEOC annual seminar in Golden.  

Rich Furlong, Hallie Kaiser and Julia Patrick, Digital Marketing specialists, attended the 
Digital Marketing Summit in Denver. 

Jeopardy! Lakewood Library Patron Experience Associate Charlie Jorgenson made quite a 
stir as a contestant on Jeopardy this month. Our Promotions team jumped right in, live tweeting 
to engage our local library audience in the fun! Here’s what happened in Charlie’s own words: 

After nearly 20 years of tests and auditions, I finally 
got the call in March to compete on Jeopardy! With 
only three weeks’ notice, I hurried to the public 
library to find books that could help me quickly brush 
up on topics like geography and mythology—the 
teen section was quite helpful! I figure libraries were 
essential to building up the trove of information, 
trivial and otherwise, that made it possible to be on 
the show, so it was fitting to finish my preparation 
there.  

I want to thank all of the folks at JCPL for the warm 
wishes and congratulations. I particularly want to 
thank the Promotions and Marketing group not only 
for putting me in touch with local media, but also for promoting and live tweeting during my games! It was 
such a fun experience that I definitely wanted to share it with as many people as possible. And I’ll always 
remember the first patron who approached me at the desk to ask if that was me on Jeopardy! 

Legislative Updates 

BCC Hearing July 23rd on potential ballot initiative.  

 



 

2 
 

JCPL Service Highlights 

Meditation Call in program, Featured on Channel 2 News: Staff teams up with a trained 
professional from the Jefferson Center for Mental Health to guide patrons in meditation at a 
weekly call in program. Patrons can call in from the comfort of their own homes, learn about the 
benefits of meditation and then actually get to meditate! Our goal is to not only reach patrons 
who don’t have time or can’t come to the library for a program, but also offer something valuable 
(in this case for mental wellness) that you may not feel comfortable coming to a public place and 
trying. So far we have held 6 programs with an average attendance of 16.  

Impact Statements: 

“This call changed my life”  

“You were able to make Compassion Meditation more real for me today than I think it has ever 
been, and I got some great ideas for future work!”   

 “Thank you so much for these offerings, as I'm a bit more housebound at this point, and it is 
wonderful to connect with other people this way.”   

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES,  
July 2019 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE IMPACT 
Elected and Appointed 
Officials – special meeting 

County budget prioritization; 
revenue enhancement 
concepts discussion. 

Offered input on concepts 
related to potential ballot 
initiative. 

Lunch with Jeanne Lomba, 
Trustee 

Relationship building.  Learned about priorities. 
Learned how to be a better 
support. 

Meeting with Open Space 
staff 

Learn about the proposed 
TerraSource Center for the 
Golden Civic Center. 

Increased understanding of 
potential partnership 
opportunities. Learned about 
a new community resource. 

Board Training Advisory 
Group Meeting, Colorado 
State Library 

Visioning activity on impact of 
training trustees on public 
library success. Update on 
trustee communication and 
CALCON. 

Input shared for future trustee 
trainings and communication. 

Elected Officials/Personnel 
Board meeting 
 

Chair meeting. Participate in 
Countywide planning. 

Library visibility and 
relationship-building with 
Elected and Appointed 
officials. 

Meeting with Holly Bjorklund, 
Jefferson County Director of 
Strategy, Innovation and 
Finance 

Relationship building. 
Expectations check in. 

Discussed ways to 
collaborate and create 
efficiencies for Jeffco 
taxpayers. Set expectations 
for first potential project. 



 

3 
 

Meeting with Kelly Circle, 
Dean of Instruction, RRCC, 
Board Chair West Metro 
Chamber of Commerce 

Onboarding. Understand 
expectations for participation 
and advocacy. 

Gained understanding of the 
value of my participation to 
the Library and the West 
Metro Board.  

Meeting with Tom Hoby, 
Director of Parks and Open 
Space 
Scheduled for July 17th 

Discuss partnership 
opportunities in South County 
in relation to library service 
needs. 

 

Meeting with Jill Fellman, 
community member 
Scheduled for July 18th 

Explore potential Board 
application. 

 

Standley Lake Library 
Discover Together Outdoor 
Space Ribbon Cutting 
Scheduled for July 20th 

Celebrate with the 
community, staff, volunteers 
and donors. 

 

Meeting with Kelly Duncan, 
President and CEO, 
Community First Foundation 
Scheduled for July 22nd 

Relationship building.  

Meeting with Jo Schantz, 
Executive Director, Library 
Foundation 
Scheduled for July 22nd 

Relationship building.  

West Chamber Combined 
Business After Hours 
Scheduled for July 24th 

Engage with members of the 
West Metro and Black 
Chambers of Commerce. 
Promote library programs 
and services to local 
business. 

 

Volunteer Appreciation 
Luncheon 
Scheduled for July 26th 

Participate as a Board 
member. Acknowledge and 
express appreciation for 
Library and Foundation 
supporters. 

 

Edgewater Library Family 
Place Open House 
Scheduled for July 27th 

Celebrate and promote this 
early literacy service with 
staff and community partners.

 

 

We’d love to have you participate in these Programs and Events 

July 20 Standley Lake Discover Together Outdoor Space Open House and VIP Reception: 
We’re excited that our Kids & Families space at the Standley Lake Library now extends 
beyond library walls. Families can explore, discover, move, pretend, observe, use their 
senses and make new friends in this interactive landscape. 

July 27 Edgewater Family Place Open House. Event is a celebration of our Family Place and 
promotion of those services.  
 



 

4 
 

Registration is open for CALCON, Dates are 9/19/2019 – 9/21/2019. This is the annual 
conference put on by the Colorado Association of Libraries.  There are specific trainings and 
sessions targeted to trustees. Chic is on a panel. Trustee tracks are on Friday and Saturday. It 
would be great to have you attend. Work with Amber to sign up. 

Registration is open for Urban Libraries Council 2019 Forum: Preparing to Lead on AI + Digital 
Citizenship. Dates are October 16-18 in Salt Lake City, UT. I highly recommend this conference 
for Trustees. Due to the dates of the conference, I’m requesting that we change the October 
Board meeting to the study session date of 10/10/19 or to 10/24/19 so that Trustees and staff 
are able to attend.



Operational Updates 

 

Finance and Budget Department 

 

 

 

 



 
 

to: Donna Walker, Executive Director 

from: Barbara Long, Assistant Director for Finance & Budget 

re: Finance Monthly Report - Budget to Actual Tables 

date: July 16, 2019   

A. Budget to Actual Tables 

The Budget to Actual Tables for June are attached. Property tax revenue receipts for June 
have not posted yet and are not included in these tables. Most property tax revenue for 
2019 will be received by the end of summer. Investment income also includes earnings 
on the County’s investment pool through the end of May (June has not posted yet). 
Investment income has already exceeded the amount budgeted for the year and E-Rate 
revenue is on track to exceed the budgeted amount as well.  

The June tables show Library Foundation support of $104,730. In-kind support provided 
to the Foundation by the Library through the end of June is valued at $36,951 (Ratio of 
2.83:1). July’s contribution to the Library included proceeds from the Whale Sale, which 
will be part of next month’s financial tables. 

June capital statements include funding and expenses for library alternative services, 
reflecting the purchase of book lockers and a materials vending machine. Detailed 
financial statements for the Edgewater Library project and Belmar Renovation project are 
included with June’s financial information. 

June’s project statement for the Edgewater Library shows final expenses. Overall, the 
project came in almost $350,000 under budget. This total is a combination of actual 
savings of about $176,000 and savings realized because the Library over-budgeted for 
preconstruction costs by adding the 2017 budget of $160,000 for preconstruction to the 
2018 project budget of $2,600,000. The total multi-year project budget was intended to be 
$2.6M. Savings from the Edgewater project would be available to fund other needs. 

Operating expenses are on track for this time of year and the Library should meet and 
possibly exceed the vacancy savings requirement included in the 2019 budget.  

 



Sources of Funds 4.000 4.500

Revenues
Taxes    
  Property Tax - Operating 35,613,839$    35,191,405$   40,428,530$   28,749,069$   (11,679,461)$   -29%
  Property Tax - Capital 1,673,653        1,655,348      1,949,693      1,353,948      (595,744)          -31%
Total Taxes 37,287,492$    36,846,753$   42,378,223$   30,103,017$   (12,275,206)$   -29%

Federal & State Grants 133,000$         130,042$        130,000$        128,084$        (1,916)$            -1%
Fines & Fees 530,850           495,864         492,731         234,613         (258,118)          -52%
Other Revenue 329,400           924,514         495,000         574,600         79,600             16%
Total Other Revenues 993,250$         1,550,420$     1,117,731$     937,297$        (180,434)$        -16%

Sub Total Revenues 38,280,742$    38,397,173$   43,495,954$   31,040,314$   (12,455,640)$   -29%
Fund Balance Activity

Transfer from FB - Capital Projects 3,946,044        3,248,054      -                      NA
Transfer to Fund Balance -                   1,365,309      -                 13,734,751    NA
Total Sources of Funds 42,226,786$    37,031,864$    46,744,008$    17,305,563$    

Uses of Funds

Operating Expenditures

Salaries & Employee Benefits
Salaries  $    13,566,138 $    13,365,746 $    14,766,591 $      6,793,512  $    (7,973,079) -54%
Benefits          4,213,500         3,988,172         4,818,086         2,071,897        (2,746,189) -57%

Total Salaries & Benefits 17,779,638$    $    17,353,918 $    19,584,677 $      8,865,409  $  (10,719,268) -55%
Library Books & Materials  $      8,273,586 $      8,170,418 $      8,139,065 $      4,045,592  $    (4,093,473) -50%
Supplies          1,470,059         1,283,607         1,587,418            625,760           (961,658) -61%
Vehicles             140,000            104,805                     -                       -                        -   NA
Other Services & Charges          4,840,532         3,407,329         4,339,726         1,997,763        (2,341,963) -54%
Internal Transactions /Cost Allocation          1,748,514         1,776,357         1,886,026         1,117,938           (768,088) -41%

Total Operating Expenditures 34,252,329$    $    32,096,434 $    35,536,912 $    16,652,462  $  (18,884,450) -53%

Financing & Debt Service  $      1,486,667 $      1,486,667 $      1,448,432 $           79,179  $    (1,369,253) -95%

Capital Projects 6,487,790$      $      3,448,762 $      9,698,278 $         573,922  $    (9,124,356) -94%

Total Uses of Funds 42,226,786$    $    37,031,864 $    46,683,622 $    17,305,563  $  (29,378,059) -63%

TABLE 1
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET
TOTAL FUND SUMMARY

2018 Actual
2019 Amended 

Budget
Budget to 
Actual %

YTD Actual 
6/30/2019

Sources and Uses of Funds
$ Variance 

2019 Budget
2018 Amended 

Budget



Beginning Fund Balance 17,491,968$      18,164,234$   18,164,234$   19,529,543$    19,529,543$   

Revenues 36,607,089$       36,741,825$    41,546,261$    29,686,366$    41,629,149$    
Capital Funding 1,673,653           1,655,348        1,949,693        1,353,948        1,949,693        
Total Revenues 38,280,742$      38,397,173$   43,495,954$   31,040,314$    43,578,842$   

Expenditures
Operating Expenditures 34,252,329$    32,096,434$    35,536,912$    16,652,462$    35,536,912$    
Debt Service 1,486,667        1,486,667        1,448,432        79,179             1,448,432        
Capital Projects 6,487,790        3,448,762        9,698,278        573,922           9,348,506        

Total Expenditures 42,226,786$      37,031,864$   46,683,622$   17,305,563$    46,333,850$   

Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance (3,946,044)$      $     1,365,309 $    (3,187,668)  $   13,734,751 $    (2,755,009)

Ending Fund Balance 13,545,924$       19,529,543$    14,976,566$    33,264,294$    16,774,534$    

2018 Budget
2019 Amended 

Budget

16% - Current Year Budgeted Revenues 6,124,919$         6,959,353$      
9% - Current Year Budgeted Revenues - Uncertainty 3,445,267           3,914,636        

Total Minimum F/B Reserve Requirements (FLOOR)  $        9,570,186 10,873,989$    

50% of Current Year Budgeted Revenues 19,140,371$       21,747,977$    
Total Maximum F/B Reserve Requirements 
(CEILING)

 $      19,140,371 21,747,977$    

Above/(Below) Minimum (FLOOR) 3,975,739$        4,102,578$     
Above/(Below) Maximum (CEILING) (5,594,447)$       (6,771,411)$     

Fund Balance Policy Calculation

Year End 
Projected 

Fund Balance

TABLE 2A
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

FUND BALANCE SUMMARY
2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

YTD Actual 
6/30/2019

2018 Actual
2019 Amended 

Budget
2018 Amended 

Budget



Sources of Funds

Revenues
Taxes
  Property Taxes 35,518,639$    35,130,173$   41,376,815$   28,733,796$   41,376,815$    -$                
  Delinquent Taxes 96,167             40,938           105,503         -                  105,503           -                 
  Prior Year Cancellations (27,635)            -                 (80,608)          -                  (80,608)            -                 
  Urban Renewal -                  -                 (996,510)        -                  (996,510)          -                 
  Penalties & Interest 26,668             20,294           23,330           15,273           23,330             -                 
Total Taxes 35,613,839$    35,191,405$   40,428,530$   28,749,069$   40,428,530$    -$                

Federal & State Grants 133,000$         130,042$        130,000$        128,084$        130,000$         -$                
Library Fines 395,800           367,082         365,000         172,023         365,000           -                 
Charges for Services 135,050           128,782         127,731         62,590           127,731           -                 
Investment Income 241,400           592,860         322,000         383,803         400,000           78,000           
Library Foundation 30,000             188,415         85,000           104,730         85,000             -                 
E Rate Revenue 58,000             107,068         88,000           71,888           92,888             4,888             
Other Revenue -                  36,170           -                 14,179           -                      -                 
Total Revenues 36,607,089$    36,741,825$   41,546,261$   29,686,366$   41,629,149$    82,888$          
    

Uses of Funds

Operating Expenditures
Salaries & Employee Benefits

Salaries  $    12,268,624 $    11,373,583 $    13,872,155 5,884,230$     13,872,155$    -$                
Awards & Bonuses             120,000                       -            125,000 -                      125,000           -                     
Termination Pay                      -              158,188                       - 30,588           -                      -                     
Temporary Salaries          2,063,934         1,832,115         2,080,360 877,351         2,080,360        -                     
Overtime               14,130                1,860                7,130 1,343             7,130               -                     
Vacancy Savings           (900,550)                     -         (1,318,054) (1,318,054)       
Benefits          4,213,500         3,988,172         4,818,086 2,071,897      4,818,086        -                     

Total Salaries & Benefits 17,779,638$    $    17,353,918 $    19,584,677 $      8,865,409  $    19,584,677 $                    - 
Library Books & Materials  $      6,907,000 $      6,859,918 $      6,768,000 $      3,012,361  $      6,768,000 -$                
Library Computer Materials          1,234,706         1,176,240         1,173,185            914,048 1,173,185        -                     
Library Periodicals             131,880            134,260            197,880            119,183 197,880           -                     
Sub-Total Library Collections          8,273,586         8,170,418         8,139,065         4,045,592          8,139,065                     -   
Supplies  $      1,470,059 $      1,283,607 $      1,587,418 $         625,760  $      1,587,418 -$                
Other Services & Charges          4,840,532         3,407,329         4,339,726         1,997,763 4,339,726        -                     
Vehicles             140,000            104,805                     -                       -   -                      -                     
Direct Internal Charges             140,762            173,788            196,182              62,575 196,182           -                     
Indirect Cost Allocation             929,085            929,085         1,067,744            530,267 1,067,744        -                     
Intra County Transactions             678,667            673,484            622,100            525,095 622,100           -                     

Total Supplies and Other 16,472,691$    $    14,742,517 $    15,952,235 $      7,787,053  $    15,952,235 $                  -   

Total Uses of Funds 34,252,329$    32,096,434$   35,536,912$   16,652,462$   35,536,912$    -$                

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET
OPERATING EXPENDITURES

TABLE 3

2018 Actual
2019 Amended 

Budget
Projected Year-

End 2019
YTD Actual 
6/30/2019

Variance 2019 
Budget

Sources and Uses of Funds
2018 Amended 

Budget



2018 Budget

Principal - Arvada (2005-2024)  $        528,501 $        528,501 $        539,667 $                  -    $        539,667 -$                 
Interest - Arvada (2005-2024)              94,823             94,823             82,192             41,096              82,192 -                  
Principal  - Refunding Series 2013            608,264           608,264           608,264            608,264 -                  
Interest - Refunding Series 2013              91,544             91,544             61,695             30,847              61,695 -                  
Principal - COP - Capital Projects            142,143           142,143           142,143            142,143 -                  
Interest - COP - Capital Projects              21,392             21,392             14,472               7,236              14,472 -                  

Total Debt Service  $     1,486,667 $     1,486,667 $     1,448,432 $          79,179  $     1,448,432 -$                

Arvada
Total Issue $8,886,000
Term 2005-2024
Use - Arvada Library Facility

Build America Bonds 
Total Issue $6,293,000
Original Term 2011-2020
Refunding Term 2013-2024
Use - Lakewood HVAC

Energy Conservation
Book Sorters
Library Service Center Remodel

Certificates of Participation (COP)
Total Issue $995,000
Term 2014-2020
Use - Belmar Roof Replacement

Columbine HVAC
Columbine Parking Lot
Standley Lake Parking Lot

Debt Service

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
DEBT SERVICE DETAIL

2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

TABLE 4

 2018 Actual  2019 Budget
Variance 2019 

Budget
Sources and Uses of Funds

YTD Actual 
6/30/2019

Projected Year 
End 2019



Sources of Funds
Property Tax - Capital - 4.5% 1,673,653$      1,655,348$  1,949,693$  1,949,693$  1,353,948$ 1,949,693$      -$                   
Transfer from FB - Edgewater Library Project 2,600,000        2,600,000   -              -              -                 -                 
Transfer from FB - Capital Expenses 1,346,044        1,346,044   1,929,890   3,248,054   3,248,054       -                 
Total Sources of Funds 5,619,697$      5,601,392$  3,879,583$  5,197,747$  1,353,948$ 5,197,747$      -$                

Uses of Funds

ARM-01 Capital Maintenance 370,000$         $     348,088 200,000$     229,559$     64,233$       229,559$       -$                   
ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment 36,000                      17,724 36,000        36,000        14,771        36,000           -                 
ARM-03 Computer Replacement Plan 250,000                  163,168 250,000      250,000      64,895        250,000         -                 
ARM-04 Book Sorter Replacement 350,000                    88,954         250,000 250,000      -              250,000         -                 
ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement 351,650                  210,774 200,000      200,000      32,390        200,000         -                 
Alternative Services -                                   -   -              250,000      113,155      250,000         

16-10 Intranet/Document Management 171,282$         $       57,920 $               -   $               -   -$             -$               -$                
16-13 III Database Server -                              5,560                  -                    -   -              -                 -                 
16-14 High Availability Internet Redundancy 36,000                             -             36,000           72,000 -              72,000           -                 

17-01 Evergreen HVAC Rebuild 57,536$           $       57,536 $               -   $               -   -$             -$               -$                
17-02 Entry Door Replacement 18,600                      29,605                  -                    -   -              -                 -                 
17-11 Long-Range Facilities Master Plan 30,960                      30,960                  -                    -   -              -                 -                 
17-13 Standley Lake Outdoor Learning Env. 45,200                      20,735                  -             24,465 3,307          24,465           -                 

18-02 Lakewood Fence Replacement 55,000$           $               -   $               -   $               -   -$             -$                -$                 
18-04 Lakewood Admin Restroom Remodel 48,000                             -                    -                    -   -               -                  -                   
18-05 Evergreen Parking Lot 125,000                           -                    -           125,000 -               125,000          -                   
18-06 Sorter Replacement 0 2 sites 500,000                           -                    -                    -   -               -                  -                   
18-07 LSC Garage & Loading Dock Planning 10,000                             -           150,000         150,000 -               150,000          -                   
18-08 Bookmobile Replacement Sinking Fund 200,000                           -           200,000         400,000 -               400,000          -                   

19-01 Standley Lake Clerestory Roof -$                 $               -   $        35,000 $        35,000 -$             35,000$          -$                 
19-02 Document Management System -                                   -             60,000         160,000 -               160,000          -                   
Multi-Year Construction Projects
16-16 Columbine Library Remodel 798,342$         $     126,270 $               -   $               -   -$             -$                -$                 
17-07 Edgewater Library 2,684,220            2,195,273                  -           488,947 139,175       139,175          349,772           
18-01 Belmar Library Remodel 350,000                    96,194      6,423,500      6,677,307 141,997       6,677,307       -                   
19-03 South County Library -                           350,000         350,000 -               350,000          
Total Capital Projects  $     6,487,790 $  3,448,762 $   8,190,500 $   9,698,278 $    573,922  $     9,348,506 $        349,772 

Beginning Balance -$                 -$            200,000$     200,000$     -$             -$               
Source -                   200,000      200,000      200,000      
Use -                   -             -              -              -                 
Balance -$                 200,000$     400,000$     400,000$     -$             -$               

2016 Projects

2017 Projects

2018 Projects

Bookmobile Sinking Fund Reserve

2019 Projects

Annual Replacement & Maintenance Program (ARM) and Recurring Projects

Variance 2019 
Budget

TABLE 5
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

Sources and Uses of Funds 2018 Actual 2019 Budget
 YTD Actual 
6/30/2019 

 Projected 
Year End 2019 

2018 Amended 
Budget

2019 
Amended 
Budget



ARM-01 Capital Maintenance 229,559$         64,233             95,336$            159,569$         69,990$           
ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment 36,000             14,771             -                        14,771             21,229             
ARM-03 Computer Replacement Plan 250,000           64,895             10,830              75,725             174,275           
ARM-04 Book Sorter Replacement 250,000           -                  -                        -                      250,000           
ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement 200,000           32,390             114,225            146,615           53,385             
Library Alternative Services 250,000           113,155           128,185            241,340           8,660               
16-14 High Availability Internet Redundancy              72,000                     -   -                        -                      72,000             
17-13 Standley Lake Outdoor Learning Envir.              24,465               3,307 -                        3,307               21,158             
18-05 Evergreen Parking Lot            125,000                     -   -                        -                      125,000           
18-07 LSC Garage & Loading Dock            150,000                     -   -                        -                      150,000           
18-08 Bookmobile Replacement Sinking Fund            400,000                      -   -                        -                      400,000           
19-01 Standley Lake Clerestory Roof              35,000                      -   -                        -                      35,000             
19-02 Document Management System            160,000                      -   -                        160,000           

Multi-Year Projects Construction Projects
17-07 Edgewater Library 488,947           139,175           -                        139,175           349,772           
18-01 Belmar Library Remodel 6,677,307        141,997           618,296            760,293           5,917,014        
19-03 South County Library 350,000           -                  -                        -                      350,000           
Total Capital Projects 9,698,278$      573,922$         966,872$          1,540,794$      8,157,484$      

 Remaining 
Budget 

TABLE 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
2019 BUDGET TO ACTUAL

Project
2019 

Amended 
Budget 

 YTD Actual
6/30/19 

YTD 
Encumbrances 

6/30/19 

 YTD Total 
Actual + Enc 



$160,000
2017 Phase I Planning Budget - Board approved transfer of $80k from Project 17-12 Current 
Year Facility Expansion to Edgewater Project - Sept 21, 2017

2,600,000         2018 Tenant Finish Budget

13,500              2018 Additional Funding for Family Place
$2,773,500 Total Project Budget

Contracts

$117,803 Wember - Owners Rep 04/10/2017

94,750              Humpries Poli - Architect 07/27/2017

$212,553

$160,000 2017 Budget 

$89,280 2017 Actual
$70,720 Remaining 2017 Budget

$2,600,000 Board of Trustee approved the 2018 Proposed Budget at the June 15, 2017 Board Mtg.

$122,631 Board of Trustees approved $122,631 in project carryover at the Feb 15, 2018 Board Mtg.

($51,911) May Budget adjustment: project carryover did not include 2017 accrued expenses

$13,500 May Budget adjustment: Edgewater Family Place 

$2,684,220 2018 Project Budget

2,195,273         2018 Actual Expenses

$488,947 Remaining 2018 Budget

$549,333 Board of Trustees approved $549,333 in project carryover at the Feb 14, 2019 Board Mtg.

($60,386) Pending Budget adjustment for retainage accrued to 2018

$488,947 2019 Project Budget

$139,175 2019 Actual Expenses

$349,772 Remaining 2019 Budget

2019 Timeline

2018 Timeline

In collaboration with the City of Edgewater, JCPL will provide a new 10,000 sq ft library.  The City of 
Edgewater will pay for the land and the construction of their new Civic Center.   JCPL will provide the tenant 
finishes of the Library space and operate the new Library.  This library will align with JCPL's vision of a 21st 
Century Library.  

Edgewater Library Remodel
Project to Date - Budget to Actual

Project Description

Project Budget

2017 Timeline

June 30, 2019



Design & 
Engineering

Owner's 
Requirements 

(Rep) Construction

Permits, Utility 
Fees, Impact 

Fees & Resource 
Rights FFE Technology

Contingencies & 
Escalation Total

Budget 210,900$              205,403$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             282,801$             2,773,500$             

Revised Budget 210,900$              205,403$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             282,801$             2,773,500$             

2017 Actual
May -$                      4,480$                  -$                       -$                    -$                     -$                     -$                     4,480$                    
June 2,953                    2,953                      
July 1,316                    1,316                      
Aug 978                       978                         
Sept 5,104                    6,881                    11,985                    
Oct 4,965                    5,498                    3,368                   13,830                    
Nov 1,346                   1,346                      
Dec 34,116                  17,795                  480                      52,391                    

Total 2017 44,185                  39,902                  -                         -                      4,714                   -                       480                      89,280                    

2018 Actual
Jan -                        -                        -                         -                      -                       -                       -                       -                          
Feb 4,361                    576                       204,000                 208,937                  
March 32,540                  8,351                    40,891                    
April 7,079                    11,840                 18,919                    
May 5,034                    3,761                    4,943                     13,738                    
June 5,796                    29,421                 35,217                    
July 11,334                  12,689                  128,068                 32,088                 184,179                  
August 10,687                  203,334                 1,779                   215,801                  
September 2,366                    5,545                    363,443                 3,281                   9,064                   383,698                  
October 2,217                    6,762                    260,515                 3,150                   5,333                   277,977                  
November 2,292                    11,377                  149,355 109,731 74,329                 347,085                  
December 2,871                    2,458                    194,612                 30,352 238,539 468,831                  

Total 2018 63,016                  75,081                  1,508,270              -                      209,802               339,105               -                       2,195,273               

2019 Actual
Jan (60,386)                  4,686                   (55,700)                   
Feb 14,720                 14,720                    
March 1,137                     80,027                 6                          81,170                    
April 97,476                   97,476                    
May 1,509                   1,509                      

Total 2018 -                        -                        38,228                   -                      100,942               6                          -                       139,175                  

Total Expenditures 107,201                114,982                1,546,497              -                      315,457               339,111               480                      2,423,728               

Remaining Budget 103,699$              90,421$                (202,997)$              23,693$              4,043$                 48,592$               282,321$             349,772$                

Edgewater Library Project
Project - Budget to Actual

Inception-to-Date
June 30, 2019



$350,000 2018 Phase I Planning Budget

6,423,500          2019 Original Project Budget

$6,773,500 Total Project Budget

$350,000 2018 Budget 

$96,194 2018 Actual

$253,806 Remaining 2017 Budget

$6,423,500 Board of Trustee approved the 2019 Budget in December, 2018

$253,806 Board of Trustees approved $253,806 in project carryover at the Feb 14, 2019 Board Mtg.

$270,000 Approximate additional funding needed; identified at the Jan 10, 2019 Board Study Session

$6,677,306 2019 Project Budget

141,997             2018 Actual Expenses

$6,535,309 Remaining 2018 Budget

2019 Timeline

JCPL is rennovating the Belmar Library to reflect new trends in library service, make better use of available 
space, increase safety for patrons and library staff and to update furnishings and fixtures. The Belmar Library first 
opened in 2000 and was last updated in 2007.

Belmar Library Renovation
Project to Date - Budget to Actual

Project Description

Project Budget

2018 Timeline

June 30, 2019



Design & 
Engineering

Owner's 
Requirements 

(Rep) Construction
Survey, Testing, 

Permits FFE Technology
Contingencies & 

Escalation Total

Budget 750,985$              220,000$              4,648,200$            40,000$              738,000$             375,174$             271,141$             7,043,500$             

Revised Budget 750,985$              220,000$              4,648,200$            40,000$              738,000$             375,174$             271,141$             7,043,500$             

2018 Actual
Nov 22,146                  22,146                    
Dec 49,400                  24,648                  74,048                    

Total 2018 49,400                  46,794                  -                         -                      -                       -                       -                       96,194                    

2019 Actual
Jan -                          
Feb 32,805                  19,808                  52,613                    
March -                          
April 32,382                  9,829                    42,211                    
May 33,078                  9,904                    4,190                  47,172                    
June -                          
July -                          

Total 2019 98,266                  39,541                  -                         4,190                  -                       -                       -                       141,997                  

Total Expenditures 147,666                86,335                  -                         4,190                  -                       -                       -                       238,190                  

Remaining Budget 603,319$              133,666$              4,648,200$            35,810$              738,000$             375,174$             271,141$             6,805,310$             

Belmar Library Renovation Project
Project - Budget to Actual

Inception-to-Date
June 30, 2019



Operational Updates 

 

Facilities & Construction Projects 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities & Construction 
 
DATE:  July 15, 2019 
 
RE:  Agreement with the City of Arvada 
 
Background; 
 
JCPL Facilities was approached by the Parks Department of the City of Arvada with a request to utilize 
some space we are currently not using outside the Arvada Library.  Specifically, they asked if they could 
place a gate on one of the exterior walled enclosures that has remained empty since we built the 
building in 2006 (see attached picture).  The City plans to use the space to store a small dumpster and an 
outdoor cabinet for use with special events that occur in the park on the west side of the Library.  We 
have no objection or concerns. Either party may terminate the agreement with the required notice. 
 
To assure both parties understand the agreement and to protect the Library’s interest/property the 
attached document has been drafted by the City’s attorney and has been reviewed and found 
acceptable by our County attorney. 
 
Next Actions;  
I would like to ask the Board to authorize you execute the attached agreement with the City of Arvada.  
This is a no fee agreement and there is no cost to the Library. 
 





19-1521              1 of 5  

LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT (“License Agreement”), dated for reference purposes only June 25, 
2019, is made and entered into by and between the JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY, a 
body politic and corporate (the “Library”) and CITY OF ARVADA, a body politic and corporate (the 
“Licensee”).  

RECITALS 

A. The Library owns property located at 7525 W. 57th Avenue, Arvada, CO 80002 (the “Property”). 

B. Licensee has requested, and the Library is willing to grant, a license over a portion of the Property for 
the construction and use of a secured storage area (the “Licensed Use”). The License Use will occur 
over the portion of the Property described in Exhibit A, attached hereto (the “Licensed Area”).  

 

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by Library, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

LICENSE 

1. GRANT OF LICENSE. Library hereby grants Licensee a license to conduct the Licensed Use within 
the Licensed Area, together with reasonable access to the Licensed Area as described herein and in 
Exhibit A. Prior to commencing any construction within the Licensed Area, Licensee coordinate 
with Library staff to ensure the impact to the Property is minimized. 

2. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. The Library Representative is Kurt Jungwirth, Facilities 
Operations Manager, or his designee. The Licensee Representative is 
______________________________. The Licensee may change the Licensee Representative upon 
the County’s prior written approval. 

3. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Prior to commencing the Licensed Use, Licensee shall provide 
the Library a certificate of insurance which complies with the requirements set forth in Exhibit B, 
attached hereto. 

4. LICENSE AGREEMENT TERM. This term of this License shall commence upon full execution and 
continue until terminated in accordance with this License Agreement. 

5. LICENSE AGREEMENT FEE. There shall be no fee for this grant of license. 

6. TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this License Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice.  

6.1. If Licensee ceases its use of the Licensed Area for a period of 90 days, this License Agreement 
shall terminate.  

6.2. Upon termination of this License Agreement, Licensee shall promptly restore and reclaim the 
Property to the Library’s satisfaction. 

6.3. Licensee property remaining within the Licensed Area for 30 days after termination of this 
License Agreement shall be deemed abandoned and the Library shall have the right to dispose of 



19-1521              2 of 5  

the property. Licensee will be liable for all costs associated with disposal of Licensee’s property 
under this section. 

7. EXERCISE OF LICENSE AGREEMENT RIGHTS. Licensee shall exercise the rights granted under 
this License in such a manner as to avoid any impact to the Library’s use of the Property. 

8. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. Licensee shall not introduce, place or use hazardous materials on the 
Property. “Hazardous Materials” means flammable or explosive materials, petroleum or petroleum 
products, oil, crude oil, methane gas or synthetic gas usable for fuel, radioactive materials, asbestos 
or any hazardous, toxic or dangerous substances, materials or wastes which are regulated under any 
applicable county, municipal, state or federal law, rule, ordinance, direction, or regulations as may 
be amended from time to time. 

9. MAINTENANCE OF LICENSED AREA. Licensee shall be solely responsible for maintenance and 
repair of the Licensed Area during the term of this License Agreement. Licensee shall be liable to 
the Library for all reasonable repair and maintenance performed by the Library as a result of 
Licensee’s failure to do so.  

10. DAMAGE TO PROPERTY OR PERSON. Licensee shall promptly advise the Library 
Representative of all damages to property of the Library or of others and injuries incurred by persons 
in any manner relating, either directly or indirectly, to the Property or the activities described herein. 

11. PERSONAL RIGHT. This License is a personal right to Licensee, does not run with the land, and 
may not be assigned.   

12. LIBRARY AND PUBLIC USE. On behalf of itself and its licensees and invitees, the Library 
reserves the right to use and occupy the Property and Licensed Area for any purpose not inconsistent 
with the rights and privileges granted herein and which would not interfere with Licensee’s use 
thereof. Licensee and Licensee’s agents agree to exercise the access rights granted herein in a 
manner that does not endanger Library; for example, Licensee and Licensee’s agents shall always 
maintain a safe speed while traveling on the Property and shall not block use of the Property. By this 
grant the Library is not assuming any obligation to prevent the public from accessing the Licensed 
Area. 

13. STATUTORY PROTECTIONS. By entering into this License, the Library is not waiving any limits 
on liability or protections provided by law, including the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, 
C.R.S., Section 24-10-101, et seq. 

14. RELEASE. The Library shall not be liable to Licensee or any other person or entity whatsoever for 
any injury or damage to persons or property occasioned by reason of the use by Licensee and its 
agents of the Property including the Licensed Area, or by reason of any act or thing done or omitted 
to be done during the term of this License Agreement by Licensee or its agents. In consideration for 
this License Agreement, Licensee does hereby, to the maximum extent allowed by law, release, 
waive, and discharge the Library, its officials, agents, employees, successors and insurers, from and 
against any and all claims, damages, losses, injuries and expenses, including costs and attorney fees, 
which arise out of Licensee’s acts or omissions. The terms of this paragraph shall survive the 
termination of this License Agreement. 



19-1521              3 of 5  

15. ENCUMBRANCES TO TITLE. Licensee’s use of the Property is subject to all prior encumbrances, 
restrictions, rights, claims and interests of record, or otherwise.  

16. AMENDMENT. This License Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties. No 
provisions regarding the subject matter of this License Agreement, other than those expressly set 
forth in this License Agreement, will be of any force and effect. No modification, change or 
alteration of this License Agreement will be of any force or effect, unless in writing and signed by 
the parties. 

17. SIGNATURE AUTHORITY. The undersigned Licensee represents and warrants he/she is 
authorized to execute this License on behalf of the Licensee. 

18. ENFORCEMENT COSTS. Licensee is responsible for all reasonable costs and fees incurred by the 
Library to enforce the terms of this License Agreement. 

19. LICENSE AGREEMENT ENFORCEMENT. Enforcement of the terms of this License Agreement 
will be at the discretion of the Library and any forbearance by the Library to exercise its rights under 
this License Agreement will not be deemed or construed to be a waiver of such breach or of any 
subsequent breach of the same or any other term of this License Agreement or of the Library’s rights 
under this License Agreement. No delay or omission by the Library in the exercise of any right or 
remedy will impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. 

20. REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS. This License Agreement is not intended to convey or imply 
the approval of any federal, state, or local regulatory or governmental agency, including Jefferson 
County, with respect to any actions which Licensee may desire to take under the terms of this 
License Agreement or otherwise relating to the Property. 

21. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This License Agreement 
may be executed in two counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 
shall constitute one and the same instrument. The parties approve the use of electronic signatures for 
execution of this License. All documents must be property notarized, if applicable. All use of 
electronic signatures shall be governed by the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, C.R.S. §§24-
71.3-101 to -121. 

22. NOTICES. All notices, demands, requests and other communications required or permitted under 
this License Agreement will be in writing and will be deemed delivered when actually received, on 
the next business day after receipt, or, if earlier, and regardless whether actually received or not, 
three days after deposit in the United States mails, first class, postage prepaid, registered or certified 
addressed as follows: 

The Library: 
Jefferson County Public Library 
Manager of Budget and Finance 
10200 W. 20th Ave. 
Lakewood, CO 80215 
Tele: 303-235-5275 
Email: contracts@jcpl@jeffcolibrary.org 

The Licensee: 
City of Arvada  
Attn: Marc Williams, Mayor 
8101 Ralston Road 
Arvada, CO 80002 
Tel: 303-424-4486 
Email: mwilliams@arvada.org 

 



19-1521              4 of 5  

with a copy to: 
Jefferson County Attorney 
100 Jefferson County Pkwy. 
Golden, Colorado 80419-5500 
Tel: 303-271-8900 
Email: CAOContracts@jeffco.us 

 

 

Any party may change its address by giving notice to the other parties as provided for above. 

 

 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.] 

  



19-1521              5 of 5  

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

 

 By: __________________________________ 
  Donna R. Walker, Executive Director 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 

The foregoing License Agreement was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
_________________, 2019, by Donna R. Walker, Executive Director, Jefferson County Public Library, 
in the County of Jefferson, State of Colorado. 

 

__________________________ 
Notary’s official signature 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_________________________ 
Kurtis D. Behn 
Assistant County Attorney 

 
 

LICENSEE: 
CITY OF ARVADA, STATE OF COLORADO 

 
 
By: _____________________________ 

       Marc Williams, Mayor 
STATE OF COLORADO 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 

The foregoing License Agreement was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
_________________, 2019, by Marc Williams, Mayor of the City of Arvada, State of Colorado. 

 

__________________________ 
Notary’s official signature 

 



 
 
 TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities & Construction 
 
DATE:  July 9, 2019 
 
RE:  Amendment 7 to Facilities Lease Agreement 
 
Background; 
 
At the June Board meeting, I advised the Board about the desire to continue our lease of the properties 
on W. 50th Avenue.  I addressed some of the questions that the Board had at that meeting about 
timeframes and functions of the Facilities and Foundation spaces.  The current draft amendment to the 
lease and has now been reviewed and approved by our attorney.    
 
The estimated annual cost of the lease for the period August 2019 through July 2020 is $186,700. The 

annual cost is estimated because common area maintenance (CAM) costs can increase or decrease 

every month based on the maintenance performed that month.  

Next Actions;  
I am recommending that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the Executive Director to enter into a 5‐
year lease agreement with BPAZ Holdings 15, for the property at 10790 W. 50th Ave, for a base rent of 
$9109.67 per month plus CAM for the first year and escalating as specified in the agreement to a base 
rent of $10,249.76 per month plus CAM for the period of 08‐01‐2023 thru 07‐31‐2024. 
 



 
 
 TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities & Construction 
 
DATE:  July 9, 2019 
 
RE:  Library Service Center Garage Authorization 
 
 
Background; 
 
The Library Service Center receives all the collection materials for the organization at that facility before 
they are distributed to our libraries throughout the County.  The decision to build a garage was based on 
a request from that department to have the ability to load and unload materials out of the weather.  It is 
felt that this would significantly reduce the possibility of an injury from moving heavy boxes on the snow 
or ice.   
 
I published an RFP requesting proposals for the construction of a pre‐engineered steel building as a 
garage to attach to the north end of the Service Center.  There were 4 responses to the RFP with prices 
ranging from $169k to $485K.  This project was part of the approved 2018/2019 Capital Improvement 
Projects budget and had $160,000 in funding designated ($10k 2018 and $150k 2019). 
 
Next Actions;  
I am recommending that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the Executive Director to enter into a 
contract with DSRW Enterprises Inc. dba, Calahan Construction Services to build a pre‐engineered steel 
structure as specified in their response to RFP 19‐05 for the sum of $169,531.00. 



 
 
 TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities & Construction 
 
DATE:  July 11, 2019 
 
RE:  Phase II of Fransen Pittman Contract for Belmar Library Reconstruction 
 
 
Background; 
 
In November of 2018, the Board authorized JCPL to enter into a contract with Fransen Pittman (FP) to 
perform construction services for us on the redesign of Belmar Library.  Phase I of the contract scope 
was to have FP perform pre construction services that included cost modeling, value engineering and 
constructability reviews.  Phase I has been completed with the completion of design development.    
 
The next phase (II) of the contract will authorize FP to begin the permitting and construction portions of 
the redesign of the Belmar Library.  The project will address concerns and wishes that we heard from 
the Community: 

 Address safety & congestion concerns accessing the building from the parking lot 

 Address noise in the building 

 Create more flexible spaces 

 Make it easier to find things in the building 

 Bring the outdoors in 
In addition, JCPL will be able to: 

 Reduce energy dependence 

 Replace equipment that has reached the end of its serviceable life. 
 
Budget Information; 
 
See attached update 
 
Next Actions 
 
I recommend that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the Executive Director to sign the notice to 
proceed with Phase II of the Fransen Pittman contract and to authorize a budget transfer of $270,000 
from the Edgewater library project to the Belmar reconstruction project. This will initiate the 
construction phase of the Belmar reconstruction project.  The cost of Phase II construction is holding at 
$4,630,253 and, with the approval of the $270,000 budget transfer, the project budget will be 
$7,043,500. 
 
 
 



 
 
 

BELMAR LIBRARY UPDATE 
 
 Current Status 07/12/2019 
 
Design development has been approved and construction documents (CD’s) are being completed.  The 
project team will be reviewing those documents for accuracy, completeness and value.  The CD’s are 
scheduled to be complete August 1st and the project will move to the permitting phase with the City of 
Lakewood and West Metro Fire.   

 

 
 
Budget Approval 
 
The budget for Belmar identified in the 2018 5 year Capital Plan, was approved by the Board in 
December of 2018.  That line item cost for the project was estimated and approved at $6.7M. 
 
Cost Background 
 
As design for the project began to solidify and community input was gathered, cost modeling showed 
that some budget supplement would be necessary.   At the January study session, the Board was 
updated on the projected cost of Belmar, which was going to exceed the budget estimate for the 
reconstruction.  Some of the factors influencing that cost were rapid labor and material cost escalation, 



 
 
original architecture and construction type, inclusion of infrastructure replacement and the addition of 
the sorter in the capital costs. 
 
Below is the cost estimate that I provided to the Board at that meeting; 
 
Capital Project Cost Estimates 
Construction           $4.66M 
Design, Engineering, Equipment, Other     $2.38M 
Total Estimated Project Cost       $7.04M 
 
Approved Project Budget      $6.77M 
Difference             $0.27M 
 
Project Budget Summary 
 

 

$350,000 2018 Phase I Planning Budget

6,423,500        2019 Original Project Budget

$6,773,500 Total Project Budget

$350,000 2018 Budget 

$96,194 2018 Actual

$253,806 Remaining 2017 Budget

$6,423,500 Board of Trustee approved the 2019 Budget in December, 2018

$253,806 Board of Trustees approved $253,806 in project carryover at the Feb 14, 2019 Board Mtg.

$270,000 Approximate additional funding needed; identified at the Jan 10, 2019 Board Study Session

$6,677,306 2019 Project Budget

141,997           2018 Actual Expenses

$6,535,309 Remaining 2018 Budget

2019 Timeline

JCPL is rennovating the Belmar Library to reflect new trends in library service, make better use of available 
space, increase safety for patrons and library staff and to update furnishings and fixtures. The Belmar 
Library first opened in 2000 and was last updated in 2007.

Project to Date - Budget to Actual

Project Description

Project Budget

2018 Timeline

June 30, 2019



 
 

 

	
 
 
 



Operational Updates 

 

Information Technology 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Bernadette Berger, Director of IT  
 
DATE:  July 15, 2019 
 
RE:  Contract for Automated Materials Handling System 
 
 
Belmar Sorter: Automated Materials Handling System RFP 19‐06 
On May 29, 2019 Jefferson County Public Library (JCPL) issued an RFP for an Automated Materials 
Handling System to be installed at Belmar as part of the renovation project with the option to install 
similar systems in other library locations.  Four vendors attended a walk‐though of the Belmar on May 
30, and JCPL received five bids, which met the project criteria.  Vendors were evaluated by a team that 
included representatives from Public Services, Facilities, and IT while Finance provided review of the 
process. RFID Library Solutions, Inc.  was selected as the top bidder based on the cover letter, past 
project experience, references, system requirements, cost, and maintenance.   
 
The product from RFID meets the project requirements. RFID scored well in all categories.  RFID has 
agreed to provide local support personnel and honor current pricing models for a minimum of three 
years. 
 
Jefferson County Public Library has a need to provide an available and reliable Automated Materials 
Handling System, which both patrons and staff use daily.  Jefferson County Public Libraries strives to 
make the patron experience positive and easy by providing a “Drop and Go” induction service either via 
the internal book drop portal or via an external drive‐up or walk‐up book drop portal.  The specific goal 
of the system is to provide the patron convenience of an available and reliable “Drop and Go” system 
while maintaining current staffing levels supporting the system and allowing staff to focus on serving 
patrons in other service areas. 
   
The projected start date will be phased with Belmar project with the estimated start date of this 
contract to be March 1, 2020. 
 
Budget:  
The budget for the contract is included in the Belmar Capital Projects budget. 
 
Action Requested:  
The selection team is recommending RFID Library Solutions, Inc. to provide an Automated Materials 
Handling System for the Belmar renovation project. We are asking the Library Board of Trustees to 
authorize the Executive Director to sign a contract with the recommended vendor in the amount of 
$259,640. 
 
 
 



Operational Updates 

Public Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Debbi Mikash, Library Collections Manager   
 
DATE:  July 9, 2019 
 
RE:   Baker & Taylor Annual Renewal 
 
 
History of Contract:  Baker & Taylor – Primary Print Vendor 
Baker & Taylor is our primary print vendor.  JCPL purchases print books for all ages from Baker & Taylor 
for patron use.  In December 2017, an RFP was published for a primary print vendor.  There were two 
responses that met all of the required criteria for the RFP and the selection team chose Baker & Taylor 
for a second contract period.  In June 2018, the Board of Trustees approved a contract, annually 
renewable for four years. We are asking the Board of Trustees to renew this contract for the first time.  
 
Total Cost: 
Not to exceed $6,500,000, the same amount as approved in 2018. 
 
Budget:  
70082.426430 
This expenditure is within the approved 2019 budget. 
 
Next Actions:  
Recommendation that the Board of Trustees approve the first renewal of this contract, and authorize 
the Executive Director to sign the renewal. 
 
 



 
 
TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Debbi Mikash, Library Collections Manager 
 
DATE:   June 27, 2019   
 
RE:  First Annual Renewal of Ebsco Subscription Services Contract 
 
 
History of Contract: Ebsco Subscription Services, Contract Renewal  
In 2018 the library entered into an RFP process to ensure we were receiving the best value for managing 
periodical subscriptions. In June of 2018 the Board of Trustees authorized Jefferson County Public 
Library to make Ebsco our vendor for subscription services.  Ebsco provides JCPL with one access point 
to deal with our thousands of periodical subscriptions, thus streamlining the process of managing these 
subscriptions by JCPL staff.   The approved contract allows us to renew it annually for four additional 
years.  This is the first renewal of this contract. Ebsco continues to provide us with excellent customer 
service as outlined in our original RFP.   
 
Total Cost:  
This contract has a “not to exceed” amount of $200,000. 
 
Budget: 
70082.426490 Books and Materials 
 
Action Requested:  
I am recommending that we continue to use Ebsco as our vendor for subscription services. I am asking 
the Library Board of Trustees to authorize the Executive Director to sign a renewal of the contract with 
Ebsco.  This expenditure is within the approved 2019 budgeted amount. 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda - July 25, 2019
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes - June 13, 2019 Study Session 
	Minutes - June 20, 2019 Board Meeting
	Foundation Report
	Executive Director Report
	Operational Updates - Finance & Budget
	Table 1 - Total Fund Summary
	Table 2A - Fund Balance Summary
	Table 3 - Operating Expenditures
	Table 4 - Debt Service Detail
	Table 5 - Capital Improvement Projects
	Table 6 - Capital Improvement Projects
	Edgewater Library Project Budget to Actual
	Belmar Library Project Budget to Actual
	Operational Updates - Facilities & Construction - Arvada License Agreement
	Operational Updates - Facilities & Construction - Facilities Lease Agreement
	Operational Updates - Facilities & Construction - Library Service Center Garage
	Operational Updates - Facilities & Construction - Phase II Belmar Library Reconstruction 
	Operational Updates - Information Technology - Automated Materials Handling System - Belmar Library
	Operational Updates - Public Services - Baker & Taylor Contract Renewal
	Operational Updates - Public Services - Ebsco Subscription Services Contract Renewal

